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Franklin: Securities - Misappropriation Theory - Extension of Liability Fou

CASENOTES

SECURITIES—Misappropriation Theory - Extension of Liability Found
in Rule 10b-5. Carpenter v. United States, 108 S. Ct. 316 (1987).

Foster Winans, coauthor and reporter for the Wall Street Journal’s
(WSJ) “Heard on the Street’’ (“Heard"’) daily column, reviewed negative
and positive aspects of various stocks for WSJ readers.’ Winans regu-
larly interviewed corporate executives to obtain the columns’ information.
In the interviews, Winans did not receive any corporate inside informa-
tion or “hold for release” information, nor did the column contain any such
information.? The WSJ's policy treats all information gathered by
employees during the course of employment as confidential company
property.?

Winans entered into a scheme with Peter Brant and Kenneth Felis,
both of the Kidder Peabody brokerage firm, in which Winans gave them
advance information of the contents and timing of the ‘“Heard” column.*
David Carpenter participated in the scheme by serving as a messenger
between the defendants.®

Due to the perceived quality and integrity of the “Heard”’ column,
the column had the potential to affect the price of the stocks the column
examined.® Over four months the brokers made prepublication trades on
the WSJ’s confidential information contained in approximately twenty-
seven columns.” The scheme resulted in net profits of $690,000 for the
defendants.®

The district court? relied on the misappropriation theory to find that
the defendants violated the securities laws. The court found the defen-
dants guilty of engaging in a scheme which operated as fraud and deceit
on the WSJ and the Dow Jones & Co., Inc.!

The United States Supreme Court, by an evenly divided court,"
affirmed convictions for violation of section 10(b) of the Securities

Carpenter v. United States, 108 S. Ct. 316, 319 (1987).
Id

Id.
Id
United States v. Carpenter, 791 F.2d 1024, 1026 (2nd Cir. 1986).
. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 319.
Id.

Id.
. United States v. Winans, 612 F. Supp 827 (S.D.N.Y. 1985) refers to the district
court decision. When the case was appealed to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals, the case
name was changed to United States v. Carpenter. The case name in the Supreme Court was
Carpenter v. United States.

10. Winans, 612 F. Supp. at 849.

11. Affirmance of a decision by an equally divided court affirms the lower court’s judg-
ment or decree, and has no precedential effect. 12 J. Moorg, H. BEnD1x, B. RINGLE, MOORE'S
FepERAL PracTiCE § 400.05-3 (2d ed. 1988).
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Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. section 78j (b),'? and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R.
section 240.10b-5.'° The Court, by a unanimous decision, affirmed the con-
victions under the federal wire and mail statutes, 18 U.S.C. sections 1341,
1343.1

Traditionally, the courts have construed the securities laws narrowly,
but some courts have seen a trend towards broadening the basis of liabil-
ity. This casenote examines the appropriate liability under the securities
laws for the misappropriation of material nonpublic information used in
securities transactions.

12. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 320. Section 10(b) provides:
It shall be unlawful for any person, directly or indirectly, by the use of
any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce or of the mails, or of any
facility of any national securities exchange -

(b) To use or employ, in connection with the purchase or sale of any secur-
ity registered on a national securities exchange or any security not so registered,
any manipulative or deceptive device or contrivance in contravention of such
rules and regulations as the Commission may prescribe as necessary or appropri-
ate in the public interest or for the protection of investors.

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 § 10(b), 15 U.S.C. § 78j (1982).
13. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 320. Rule 10b-5 provides:

1t shall be unlawful for any person, directly or indirectly, by the use of
any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails or of any
national securities exchange,

(a) To employ any device, scheme or artifice to defraud,

(b} To make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state
a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or

(c) To engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates
or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person, in connection with the
purchase or sale of any security.

Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5 (1987).
14. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 320. Section 1341 provides:

Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice
to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent
pretenses, representations, or promises, or to sell, dispose of, loan, exchange,
alter, give away, distribute, supply, or furnish, or procure for unlawful use any
counterfeit or spurious coin, obligation, security, or other article, or anything
represented to be or intimated to held out to be such counterfeit or spurious
article, for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice or attempting so
to do, places in any post office or authorized depository for mail matter, any
matter or thing whatever to be sent or delivered by the Postal Service, or takes
or receives therefrom, any such matter or thing, or knowingly causes to be deli-
vered by mail according to the direction thereon, or at the place at which it
is directed to be delivered by the person to whom it is addressed, any such
matter or thing, shall be fined not more than $1,000 or imprisoned not more
than five years, or both.

18 U.S.C. § 1341 (1982).
15. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 320. Section 1343 provides:

Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice
to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent
pretenses, representations, or promises, transmits or causes to be transmit-
ted by means of wire, radio, or television communication in interstate or for-
eign commerce, any writings, signs, signals, pictures, or sounds for the purpose
of executing such scheme or artifice, shall be fined not more than $1,000 or
imprisoned not more than five years, or both.

18 U.S.C. § 1343 (1982).
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BACKGROUND

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission rules nor the stat-
utes define the practice of “insider trading.’’ In general, “insider trading”’
refers to unlawful trading in securities of a company about which the
trader possesses material nonpublic information.'®

The courts have developed several theories of liability based upon trad-
ing on material nonpublic information.!” In Chiarella v. United States,'®
the Supreme Court established the duty to disclose or abstain rule. A per-
son violates Rule 10b-5 under the disclosure or abstain theory by trading
on material nonpublic information in which the person has an affirmative
duty to disclose the information before trading.”

The common law recognized that corporate insiders, particularly
officers, directors, or controlling stockholders, have an affirmative duty
to disclose to the securities market nonpublic information they use when
transacting in their corporation’s securities.?? The Supreme Court incor-
porated these common law elements in establishing a Rule 10b-5 viola-
tion. A court must find ‘(i) the existence of a relationship affording access
to inside information intended to be available for corporate purpose, and
(ii) the unfairness of allowing a corporate insider”! to take advantage of
that information by trading without disclosure.’’2

The misappropriation theory is another theory of securities laws lia-
bility which at least the Second Circuit recognizes.? Fraud in this theory
is perpetrated on the person who entrusted the information to the other
party* rather than fraud in the failure to disclose.” With the misappropri-
ation theory, the fraud occurs when a person misuses material nonpublic

16. D. LANGEVOORT, SECURITIES LAw SeEriEs, INsiDER TrapiNG HaNDBoOOK, § 1.01
(1987).

17. The duty to disclose or abstain from trading theory and the misappropriation the-
ory are addressed by the casenote. The adoption of 17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3 (1985) created another
theory for liability. The Securities and Exchange Commission adopted Rule 14e-3 to attack
improper trading in connection with tender offers. Tender offers are unique transactions;
therefore, they are not addressed by this casenote. See D. LANGEVOORT, supra note 16, § 7.

18. 445 U.S. 222 (1980).

19. Id. at 228. The duty to disclose occurs when a person has information that the other
party is entitled to because a fiduciary relationship of trust and confidence exists between
them. Id. (citing RestaTeMENT (SECOND) oF Torts § 551(2)(a) (1976)).

20. In re Cady, Roberts, & Co., 40 S.E.C. 907, 911 (1961).

21. A corporate insider is a director or officer who has knowledge of material nonpub-
lic information due to a corporate position. These insiders have a duty to refrain from using
this privileged information for personal benefits. SEC v. Texas Gulf Sulphur Co., 401 F.2d
833, 848 (2nd Cir. 1968).

22. Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 227 (citing In re Cady, 40 S.E.C. at 912 n. 15).

23. United States v. Newman, 664 F.2d 12, 19 (1981).

24. In Carpenter, the fraud was on the WSJ and the Dow Jones Co., Inc. when Winans
released the confidential information. The securities transacted by the defendants were not
related to the WSJ or the Dow Jones Co., Inc. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1032.

25. Traditionally, when a person trades on information he has gained due to his posi-
tion in the corporation, the fraud occurs from trading on information to which the other party
does not have access. The fraud is on the other party in the transaction. Chiarella, 445 U.S.
at 227-28.
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information for personal gain.?® The misappropriation theory encompasses
schemes which the traditional duty to abstain or disclose theory did not
cover.”

The misappropriation theory was before the court in Chiarella, but
the majority did not address the issue because of a faulty jury instruc-
tion which failed to specify the affirmative duty to disclose before trad-
ing.?® Chiarella, a printer, handled takeover bid announcements. The
documents delivered to the printer concealed the identities of the target
companies.? Chiarella determined the names of those companies from
other information in the documents.* Chiarella then purchased stock in
the target companies and sold the shares immediately after the takeover
attempts became public.®

The Court reversed Chiarella’s conviction, refusing to recognize “‘a
general duty between all participants in market transactions to forgo
actions based on material, nonpublic information.””** The majority held
that there can be no duty to disclose where the person who has traded
on inside information was not the corporation’s agent, fiduciary, or per-
son in whom the sellers of the securities had placed their trust and confi-
dence.” In Justice Stevens’ concurring opinion he stated that identifi-
cation of a duty is necessary for liability to be imposed for a Rule 10b-5
violation.* Stevens agreed with the majority but established two duties®
which Chiarella arguably violated: (a) a duty to disclose owed to the sellers
from whom he purchased target company stock and (b) a duty of silence
owed to the acquiring companies.*

The dissenting opinions strongly supported the misappropriation the-
ory. Chief Justice Burger’'s dissent presented the misappropriation the-
ory before the Court for the first time by stating ‘“that a person who has
misappropriated nonpublic information has an absolute duty to disclose
that information or to refrain from trading.”’*” He further stated ‘‘[aln
investor who purchases securities on the basis of misappropriated non-

26. Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 241 (Burger, C.J. dissenting}.

27. The traditional duty to abstain or disclose theory relates primarily to inside traders.
In such cases as Carpenter, no duty to disclose exists because the defendants are not trad-
ing on the inside information obtained from their positions as corporate insiders.

28. Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 231.

29, Id. at 224.

30. Id

31. Id

32. Id at 233. A jury instruction failed to specify an affirmative duty to disclose in
certain fiduciary relationships; therefore, the jury convicted Chiarella on a general duty of
equal information access between all investors. This incorrect instruction compelled the Court
to reverse Chiarella’s conviction. Id. at 236.

38. Id. at 232.

34. Id. at 237 (Stevens, J., concurring).

35. The duties Justice Stevens established are not considered the traditional duty owed
between the employee and employer. Stevens went outside the employee-employer realm and
established Chiarella arguably had a duty to the sellers of the stock which he purchased
and also a duty to the companies being acquired by the takeover. Id.

36. Id

37. Id. at 240 (Burger, C.J., dissenting).

https://scholarship.law.uwyo.edu/land_water/vol24/iss1/7
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public information possesses just such an ‘undue’ trading advantage; his
conduct quite clearly serves no useful function except his own enrichment
at the expense of others.””* Justice Brennan concurred with Chief Justice
Burger on the substance of the misappropriation theory.*

Justice Blackmun'’s dissenting opinion, in which Justice Marshall
joined, agreed the scope of liability included ‘‘persons having access to
confidential material information that is not legally available to others
generally are prohibited by Rule 10b-5 from engaging in schemes to exploit
their structural informational advantage through trading in affected secu-
rities.”’*

In Dirks v. SEC,* the Court considered a violation of Rule 10b-5 by
a “‘tippee.”*? A “tippee” receives information from an insider who breached
a trust relationship.*® Dirks was an officer of a New York broker-dealer
firm who specialized in providing investment analysis to institutional
investors.* Dirks received information from a former officer of Equity
Funding of America alleging the assets of the company were vastly over-
stated due to fraudulent corporate practices.*® As Dirks began to inves-
tigate the allegations, he also advised clients and investors of this
information.* Due to Dirks’ advice, five investment advisors liquidated
holdings of more than $16 million in Equity Funding of America.*” After
the stock price fell from twenty-six dollars per share to sixteen dollars
per share, the California insurance authorities investigated and uncovered
evidence of fraud at the company.*® The lower court convicted Dirks of
aiding and abetting under insider trading Rule 10b-5.

The Supreme Court reversed, holding that Dirks had ‘‘no duty to
abstain from use of the inside information.””*® The Court reaffirmed its
position in Chiarella that a duty to disclose arises from the relationship
between the parties and not from one’s ability to acquire information due
to his position in the market.®

Justice Blackmun'’s dissenting opinion, joined by Justices Brennan
and Marshall, found that personal gain is not a requirement of the breach

38. Id. at 241.

39. Justice Brennan concurred with the majority because the misappropriation theory
was not presented to the jury. Brennan argued an adequate instruction was necessary in
directing a verdict of guilty. Id. at 239 (Brennan, J., concurring).

40. Id. at 251 (Blackmun, J., dissenting).

41. 463 U.S. 646 (1983).

42. The introduction of the *‘tippee” into the insider trading scheme complicates mat-
ters. A “tippee” is outside the corporation but trades on information from an insider. At
issue is the duty to disclose or abstain from trading of the insider transferring to the “tip-
pee.” Dirks, 463 U.S. at 655.

43. BLack's Law DicrioNnary 1330 (5th ed. 1979).

44. Dirks, 463 U.S. at 648.

45. Id. at 649.

46. Id. at 648.

47. Id. at 649.

48. Id. at 650.

49. Id. at 651.

50. Id. at 667.

51. Id. at 658 (citing Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 231-232 n. 14),
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of duty to disclose.’? Regardless of Dirks’ motives, the misuse of material
nonpublic information injured shareholders.5

The United States Supreme Court failed to address the viability of
the misappropriation theory in Chiarella® and Dirks.*® In Carpenter, the
theory was once again before the Court, and once again, due to an evenly
divided decision,* the legitimacy of the misappropriation theory will be
left for another day.

PrincipaL Case

In the New York District Court, the defendants were charged with
participating in a scheme to trade in securities based on information mis-
appropriated from the WS.J.*” The information Winans allegedly stole from
the WSJ was the timing, content, and tenor of market-sensitive stories
scheduled to appear in the WSJ.* Indictments were brought under sec-
tions 10{b)*® and 32 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. sec-
tions 78j(b), 78ff, and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. section 240.10b-5,%° and the
federal mail and wire fraud statutes 18 U.S.C. sections 1341, 1343.%

The district court held that Winans and Felis violated section 10(b)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 by employing
devices and schemes to defraud, and engaging in a course of business
which operated as a fraud and deceit on the WSJ and Dow Jones, the par-
ent company of the WSJ.2 Each was found to have done so by means
of interstate commerce, the mails, and facilities of national securities
exchanges in connection with the purchase or sale of securities.®® In addi-
tion the defendants were found guilty of federal mail and wire fraud.*

The case was appealed to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals.®® Appel-
lants contended that they could not be held liable for violating the securi-
ties laws because they were not corporate insiders or ‘‘quasi-insiders’’s
and did not misappropriate such material nonpublic information from such
insiders or ‘‘quasi-insiders.”’®

52. Dirks, 463 U.S. at 674 (Blackmun, J., dissenting).

53. Id.

54. 445 U.S. 222.

55. 463 U.S. 674.

56. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 320.

57. Winans, 612 F. Supp. at 829.

58. Id.

59. Supra note 12.

60. Supra note 13.

61. Supra notes 14 and 15.

62. Winans, 612 F. Supp. at 849.

63. Id.

64. Id. at 850.

65. Carpenter, 191 F.2d 1024,

66. Quasi-insider refers to those individuals who are not normally part of the corporate
structure but who have access to material nonpublic information. Quasi-insider would include
bankers, accountants, and attorneys. Winans, 612 F. Supp. at 841 (citing Dirks, 463 U.S.
at 655 n. 14).

67. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1025-26.

https://scholarship.law.uwyo.edu/land_water/vol24/iss1/7
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The court broadly interpreted the securities laws and the misappropri-
ation theory in order to affirm the convictions.® The court looked to the
plain meaning of the words and congressional intent in developing such
a broad interpretation. First, the court indicated that securities laws
should be construed flexibly to combat fraud.®® In addition, the court rea-
soned that the repetition of the word “any” in 10b-5 showed Congress’
intent to draft the rule broadly.” Finally, the court reasoned, section 10
(b) of the 1934 Act was designed to be a “‘catchall” clause to prevent
fraudulent practice.”

The Second Circuit stated ‘‘one may not gain such [trading] advan-
tage by conduct constituting secreting, stealing, purloining or otherwise
misappropriating material nonpublic information in breach of an employer-
imposed fiduciary duty of confidentiality.”””? The court found the sole pur-
pose of the scheme was the purchase and sale of securities, and thereby
receiving instant no-risk profits in the stock market.”

The case was appealed, and the United States Supreme Court granted
certiorari.” The Court affirmed the judgment on the securities laws by
an evenly divided court, and affirmed unanimously on the mail and wire
fraud.™ The opinion contains no discussion of the securities laws issues.™

ANALYSIS

The misappropriation theory is an alternative method of imposing lia-
bility in connection with securities transactions. Due to the corporate
structure securities laws were originally directed at officers, directors, or
employees of a corporation that used material nonpublic information to
make a no-risk profit. The securities exchanges and the traders have
become more sophisticated; correspondingly, the schemes to obtain a no-
risk profit have also become more sophisticated. By enforcing the securi-
ties laws only against the traditional insider, a door is left open for *‘out-
siders’’ who use material nonpublic information to reap a harvest of no-risk
profit.

“In construing the Rule’s meaning, we must begin with its lan-
guage.”” Rule 10b-5 states that:

68. Id. at 1031.

69. Id. at 1029 (citing Herman & MacLean v. Huddleston, 459 U.S. 375, 386-87 (1983)).

70. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1030 (citing Affiliated Ute Citizens v. United States, 406
U.S. 128, 151 (1972)).

71. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1030 (citing Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 226.).

72. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1031.

73. Id. at 1033.

74. 108 S. Ct. 316 (1987).

75. Id. at 316. The unanimous affirmation of the mail and wire fraud charges opens
up the prosecution of white collar crimes such as insider trading regardless of what securi-
ties laws may or may not pertain.

76. Generally, the Court does not write an opinion where affirmance is by an equally
divided vote; the Court merely issues a per curiam opinion. 12 J. MoORE, supra note 11.

77. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1029; Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 226.
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It shall be unlawful for any person, directly or indirectly, by
the use of any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce,
or of the mails or of any national securities exchange,

(a) To employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud,

(b) To make any untrue statement of material fact or to omit
to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading, or

(c) To engage in any act, practice, or course of business which
operates as a fraud or deceit upon any person,

in connection with the purchase or sale of any security.™

The repetition of the word ‘“any’’ throughout the Rule evidences a
broad interpretation of the Rule.” The Rule refers specifically to schemes,
untrue statements, and fraudulent practices in connection with the pur-
chase or sale of any security. The illegal scenarios are numerous in Rule
10b-5 covering various illegal activities. In addition, the words do not limit
the liability to trading on information gained through the traditional
insider. This broad language suggests that congressional concern was the
misuse of nonpublic information in trading securities.®

The misappropriation theory’s misuse of material nonpublic informa-
tion could easily fit in the language of section 10b-5(a). The misuse of the
information could be a scheme to defraud as in Carpenter.®' The Carpenter
scheme defrauded the WSJ and the Dow Jones Co. by using the informa-
tion entrusted to Winans concerning the timing and contents of the
“Heard” article.?* The reputation of the WSJ and the integrity of the finan-
cial articles were injured when Winans’ scheme was uncovered. Winans
had a duty to WSJ not to disclose that information owned by the WSJ
and the Dow Jones Co. for a personal benefit.®

As Congress has recognized, the securities laws’ purpose is *“ ‘to assure
that dealing in securities is fair and without undue preferences or advan-
tages among investors.” ’** The misappropriation theory equalizes the
information available to be used in trading securities by disallowing the
use of misappropriated nonpublic materials. In broadening the trading
schemes encompassed under the securities laws, the investors have a
greater chance of playing on a level field. Congress intended the 1934 Act
to protect the “perception of fairness and integrity in the securities mar-
kets.”’® The misappropriation theory furthers the legislative intent by giv-
ing the security laws a broad base of liability in order to halt fraudulent
schemes. The stock market operates as a competitive auction in which

78. Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5 (1987).

79. Affiliated Ute Citizens, 406 U.S. at 151.

80. Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 240.

81. 108 S. Ct. 316 (1987).

82. Id. at 319.

83. Supra note 3.

84. Chiarella, 445 U.S. at 248 (Blackmun, J., dissenting) (citing H.R. ConF. ReP. No.
94-229 p. 91 (1975), U.S. Cope Cong. & Apmin. NEws 1975, p. 323).

85. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1030.
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buyers and sellers around the world participate. Stock prices should reflect
market conditions, such as the financial stability of the company and the
potential growth or decline of its size. The market price should reflect the
value of the stock as it is judged by market participants.® Realistically,
all participants do not have equal access or availability of information.
The misappropriation theory would punish traders using information that
should legitimately be available to the market as a whole.

The small investor is at a great disadvantage by trading on the stock
exchanges, and that disadvantage increases dramatically when other par-
ticipants manipulate the price to a point where the price no longer reflects
the company’s actual worth. The small investor needs protection from
schemes devised by such people as Winans. That protection comes from
laws which are broad enough to prevent manipulation of prices in which
a few make a quick buck. The harm to the investor is the proper concern
of the securities laws.*” Investors are equally harmed by the fraud of non-
insider misappropriators as by the fraud of insiders.®

Winans and his accomplices participated in a scheme in which they
made approximately $690,000 profit over four months.® This profit was
virtually risk free. They knew the “Heard’’ column had an impact on stock
prices. They were able to get a jump on trading the stock before other
market participants received the same information. These types of
schemes give the small minority of traders no-risk profits.

The securities exchanges are a vital part of the United States’ and
the world’s economies. The markets must remain “‘free’”’ markets in which
investments are encouraged and not hindered by concerns of the
exchanges being ‘‘fixed”’ by trading schemes. A free and open public mar-
ket is built upon the idea that competing judgments of buyers and sellers,
concerning the fair price of the security, bring about a fair market price.*
The securities laws’ ability to prevent unfair trading will provide stabil-
ity and integrity to the stock markets.

CoNCLUSION

The securities laws were developed to protect investors from undue
preference or advantages by other participants. Investors are equally
harmed by the fraud of non-inside misappropriators as by the fraud of
insiders. The misappropriation theory would provide a method to punish
traders using schemes that prior decisions under the securities laws do
not cover. The courts should have the misappropriation theory available
to fulfill the purpose of the securities laws; protection of all market
investors.

ANGELA L. FRANKLIN

86. R. AuerBacH, FinanciaL MARKETS AND INsTITUTIONS, p. 34 (1983).
87. Carpenter, 791 F.2d at 1032.

88. Id

89. Carpenter, 108 S. Ct. at 319.

90. Texas Gulf Sulphur Co., 401 F.2d at 858.
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